
 
 

City of Norman, OK 
HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

MEETING AGENDA 
Monday 

November 7, 2022 
5:30 p.m. 

201 W. Gray, City Council Chambers 
 

It is the policy of the City of Norman that no person or groups of persons shall on the grounds 
of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, age, place of birth, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender identity or expression, familial status, marital status, including marriage to a person 
of the same sex, disability, retaliation, or genetic information, be excluded from participation 
in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination in employment 
activities or in all programs, services, or activities administered by the City, its recipients, 
sub-recipients, and contractors. In the event of any comments, complaints, modifications, 
accommodations, alternative formats, and auxiliary aids and services regarding accessibility 
or inclusion, please contact the ADA Technician at 405-366-5424, Relay Service: 711. To 
better serve you, five (5) business days’ advance notice is preferred. 
 

1. Roll Call. 
 

2. Approval of the Minutes from the October 3, 2022 Regular Meeting. 
 Action Needed: Approve or amend the Minutes from last meeting. 
   

3.  HD (22-25) Consideration of Certificate of Appropriateness requests at 610 Miller 
Avenue submitted by Lance Pound, with Source Management Services, LLC for 
Joyce Green for:  
a. Replacement and modification of the roof structure; 
b. Replacement of discontinued metal roofing material with similar metal roofing 

material; 
c. Installation of solar panels on the flat roof top. 

Public Hearing: 
     Staff Presentation 
     Applicant Presentation 
     Public Comments 
     Close Public Hearing 
     Commission Discussion 
 

Action Needed:   Consideration of approval, rejection, amendment, and/or 
postponement of requests a, b, and c.   

 
4. HD (22-29) Consideration of  Certificate of Appropriateness requests at 412 

Chautauqua Avenue submitted by J. Kent and Nancy VonBargen for:   
a. Replacement of existing Masonite lap siding with cement fiberboard siding; 
b. Replacement of a wood garage door on non-original garage with a metal garage 

door.  
Public Hearing: 



Historic District Commission 
November 7, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

     Staff Presentation 
     Applicant Presentation 
     Public Comments 
     Close Public Hearing 
     Commission Discussion 
 

Action Needed:   Consideration of approval, rejection, amendment, and/or  
                 postponement of requests a, and b.                         
 

5. HD (22-28) Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness request at 645 S. 
Lahoma Avenue by Vicki Dollarhide for: 
a. Replacement of the asbestos roof tiles with an alternative roof material. 

Public Hearing: 
     Staff Presentation 
     Applicant Presentation 
     Public Comments 
     Close Public Hearing 
     Commission Discussion 
 

Action Needed:  Consideration of approval, rejection, amendment, and/or  
               postponement of the request. 
 

6. HD (22-30) Commission review and feedback at 635 Chautauqua Avenue submitted 
by Barrett Williamson, for Joe Deleon for: 
a. Addition to the house; 
b. Removal of existing driveway; 
c. Installation of new approach and drive on south side of the house; 
d. Construction of new two-story garage in rear yard; 
e. Installation of a 6’ fence side yard fence.  

Action Needed:     No action needed - for informational purposes only. 
 

7. Discussion of Historic District Commission Meeting Calendar for 2022 and 2023. 
Action Needed:     No action needed - for informational purposes only. 

 
8. Staff report on active Certificates of Appropriateness and Administrative Bypass 

issued since October 3, 2022. 
           Action Needed:      No action needed - for informational purposes only.  
 

9. Discussion of progress report regarding the FY 2022-2023 CLG Grant Projects.  
             Action Needed:      No action needed - for informational purposes only. 
 

10. Miscellaneous comments of the Historic District Commission and City Staff.  
 

11. Adjournment.  



REHISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

MINUTES OF 

October 3, 2022 

 

The Historic District Commission of the City of Norman, Cleveland County, State of Oklahoma, 
met for the Regular Meeting on October 3, 2022 at 5:30 p.m.  Notice and Agenda of the meeting 
were posted at 201 West Gray, Building A, the Norman Municipal Complex and at 
www.Normanok.gov 24 hours prior to the beginning of the meeting.   
 
Chair Emily Wilkins called the meeting to order at 5:34 p.m. 
 
Item No. 1, being:  Roll Call. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Emily Wilkins  
 Barrett Williamson 
 Aaron Brooks 
 Brent Swift 
 Michael Zorba * 
  
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Taber Halford 
 Mitch Baroff 
 Joan Koos 
 Shavonne Evans 
  
 
A quorum was present.   
 
*Commissioner Michael Zorba left after Item No. 3.   
 
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Anaïs Starr, Planner II, Historic Preservation Officer 
 Jeanne Snider, Assistant City Attorney 
 Whitney Kline, Administrative Technician III  
 
GUESTS: Joyce Green & Lloyd Bumm, 610 Miller Ave 
 Nancy & Kent VonBargen, 412 Chautauqua Ave 
 Joshua Shumway, 904 Miller Ave 
   Lance Pound 
 

* 
 

 
 
 



Historic District Commission 
October 3, 2022 
Page 2 of 8 
 
Item No. 2, being:  Approval of the Minutes from the July 5, 2022 Regular Meeting. 
 
Motion by Barrett Williamson for approval of the minutes from the July 5, 2022 regular 
meeting; 
Second by Michael Zorba. 
 
The motion was passed unanimously with a vote of 5-0.  Minutes from the previous meeting 
were approved.  

* 
 
Item No. 3, being: HD (22-25) Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness request for 
removal of vinyl siding and replacement of damaged wood siding on all exterior elevations, 
replacement and modification of roof structure, replacement of discontinued metal roofing 
material with similar metal roofing material, and for installation of solar panels on the flat 
roof top for the property located at 610 Miller Avenue. 
 
Motion by Brent Swift to approve Item No. 3 as submitted; Second by Aaron Brooks.   
 
Anaïs Starr presented the staff report:  

• Ms. Starr presented the staff report along with a PowerPoint. 
• Ms. Starr discussed how this property had damage from the October 2021 hail 

storm. Applicant has been working with her insurance company for replacement 
of the roof and siding.  

 
The applicant’s contractor, Lance Pound, and the owners, Joyce Green and Lloyd Bumm 
discussed the project: 

• The applicant brought samples of metal roofing options (Decra Villa Tile, Florida 
Metal Roofing Barrel Style Metal Tile, and Met-Tile). 

• Commissioner Wilkins asked a question about the decorative brown pieces on the 
vinyl siding. Mr. Pound explained that they were a piece of wood painted brown 
and placed on there. He was not intending to replace them. 

• Commissioner Wilkins asked about the weight of the materials in comparison 
with what is there currently and would be supported over time. Ms. Green 
explained they would be similar. 

• Mr. Bumm explained that the solar panels would be on the back of the house or 
on the second level roof where there is a possibility of seeing the top inches 
depending on where you would be standing. 

 
No public comments were made. 
 
The Commissioners determined that each item of the proposed roof modifications should be 
discussed and voted on separately. 
 



Historic District Commission 
October 3, 2022 
Page 3 of 8 
 
Motion by Brent Swift to amend the current motion and remove the solar panels from the other 
three items to allow for more information; Second by Aaron Brooks.  The motion passed 5-0.  
 
Siding 
Motion by Brent Swift to amend the current motion and approve the removal of vinyl siding and 
replace it with wood siding as submitted; Second by Aaron Brooks.  The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Modification of Roof Structure 
Commission discussion consisted of: 

The Commissioners determined that the roof awning could be attached without having to 
add more bracing. The Commissioners found that the addition of a brace would 
significantly alter the appearance of the facades and did not meet the Preservation 
Guidelines.  

 
 
Motion by Brent Swift to postpone the replacement and modification of the roof structure as 
submitted; Second by Barrett Williamson. The motion passed 5-0.  
  
Replacement of metal roofing 
Commission discussion consisted of: 

The Commissioners found that none of the metal roofing samples (Decra Villa Tile, 
Florida Metal Roofing Barrel Style Metal Tile, and Met-Tile) that were presented meet 
the Historic Preservation Guidelines. The Commissioners asked the applicant to 
investigate other roof materials, in particular aluminum roof tiles, and return to the 
Commission with other roof material options. 

 
Motion by Barrett Williamson to postpone the metal roofing material to allow the applicant to 
return with other material options. Second by Michael Zorba. The motion passed 5-0.  
 
Solar Panels 
Commission discussion consisted of: 

The Commission would like to see the applicant come back with drawings of the solar 
panels and how they will be attached. 

 
Motion by Barrett Williamson to postpone the solar panels. Second by Michael Zorba. The 
motion passed 5-0. 

* 
 
Item No. 4, being: HD (22-26) Commission review and feedback regarding the proposed 
demolition of existing structure and reconstruction of new structure for the property 
located at 904 Miller Ave. 
 
Anais Starr presented the staff report:  

• The previous property owner (Ms. Mendros) removed all the windows without seeking a 
COA in 2020.  Her subsequent request for a COA to retain the vinyl windows was 



Historic District Commission 
October 3, 2022 
Page 4 of 8 
 

denied. Her appeal of the HD Commission decision was also denied by the City Council. 
Ms. Mendros sold the property in the fall of 2021. That property owner has stated that he 
was not aware when the house was purchased that the house had a Historic District 
Ordinance violation.  

• Since last fall, Ms. Starr has discussed this property with a number of prospective 
property owners and informed all of them of the current historic district ordinance 
violation.  

• In discussions with Mr. Shumway, staff had suggested the prospective buyer seek a 
feedback session with the Commission regarding the possibility of demolition of the 
dilapidated structure and replacement with new construction.  Ms. Starr indicated that 
staff had reviewed the property and found it very deteriorated on the inside and would 
more than likely have to be stripped down to the studs and rebuilt. Ms. Starr suggested to 
the applicant to come to the Commission and receive feedback to see if demolition and 
reconstruction is an option before moving forward with a complete COA request.  
 

The applicant, Joshua Shumway, discussed the project: 
• Mr.  Shumway stumbled upon this property when he was looking for a house for a friend. 

He realized it was in a Historic District. He spoke with Anais Starr and she informed him 
of the history of the property and the current historic district violation. When he walked 
inside the home he quickly realized it needed to be taken down to the studs. The smell of 
mold showed the house was not being heated or cooled appropriately which is further 
contributed to the dilapidation.  

• Mr. Shumway asked for guidance on moving forward with demolition and reconstruction 
of a new structure.  
 

There were no public comments made.  
 
Commission Discussion: 

• Commissioner Wilkins stated that the Commission would need pictures and 
documentation in order to determine if a demolition would be appropriate.  

• Commissioner Williamson stated that approval of a design would be based upon some 
assurance that what will be built in its place will be better than what is there right now. 
The neighborhood is relying on the Commission to protect the neighborhood and not let 
something worse be built in its place.  

• Commissioner Swift questioned the authenticity of the house being an original historic 
structure. He feels like the house did not start there and may have been moved there. 

• Commissioner Wilkins suggested the new structure would need to be similar in massing 
and scale as a single family home in order to match the other houses in the neighborhood. 
Rather than a large structure on the corner of a single family home neighborhood. 

• Ms. Starr verified the zoning for the property is R-3, multifamily and since the lot is 7000 
sq. ft. that either a single family home with an apartment garage or a duplex is allowable.  

 
* 

 



Historic District Commission 
October 3, 2022 
Page 5 of 8 
 
Item No. 5, being: HD (22-27) Commission review and feedback on the replacement of the 
non-original exterior siding for the property located at 412 Chautauqua Avenue.  
 
Anais Starr presented the staff report:  

• Ms. Starr spoke about this property and how at some point stucco was placed over the 
wood and then covered up by the Masonite. The applicants would like to replace the 
Masonite with 4, 5, or 6 inch wide cement fiberboard siding.  

 
The applicant, Kent VonBargen, discussed the project: 

• Kent VonBargen brought multiple pictures and a sample of the Masonite to show the 
commission. He explained that in the process of remodeling the front porch several years 
ago is when they discovered the stucco. They removed both the stucco and wood siding 
and replaced them with Masonite siding some years ago. He explained that the Masonite 
siding was damaged in last October’s hail storm.  

 
Commission Discussion: 

• The Commissioners advised the applicant that removing the Masonite siding and 
replacing  it with 4 inch wide smooth cement fiberboard siding would be most 
appropriate. 

• Applicants plan to return with a COA request cement fiberboard siding.  
 
 
Item No. 6, being: Discussion of Historic District Commission Meeting Calendar for 2023. 

• Anaïs Starr presented the calendar and meeting days. Every meeting is scheduled for the 
first Monday of the month except for January and September which are on the first 
Tuesday due to holidays. 

 
* 

 
Item No. 7, being: Staff report on active Certificates of Appropriateness and 
Administrative Bypass issued since July 5, 2022 and consideration of approval, rejection, 
amendment and/or postponement of six-month extension requests for expiring COAs. 
 
904 Miller Ave: Staff has been in contact with new owner’s representative. Representative states 
that the owner did not know about the window violation prior to purchasing. Owner plans to re-
sell the property. No change in ownership, property is still for sale.  
518 Chautauqua Ave: Work is nearing completion.  
620 Miller Ave: Work started but not completed.  
518 S Lahoma: Demolition of the non-original addition is complete. Greenhouse has been 
removed. The construction of the new addition is in progress.  
549 S Lahoma: BOA heard appeal, postponed to March 24, 2022, postponed again to April 28, 
2022. Postponed to May 25, 2022. Applicant has replaced windows as per issued COAs. 
Oklahoma Supreme Court issues a ruling earlier this month regarding applicants request. 
503 Tulsa St: Building permit issued and construction is nearing completion.  
506 S Lahoma Ave: Work has started.  



Historic District Commission 
October 3, 2022 
Page 6 of 8 
 
428 Chautauqua Ave: Building permit issued, and work is nearing completion. Window 
installed. 
904 Classen Blvd: Work has not started.  
514 Miller Ave: Building permit has been issued and work is completed. 
521 Miller Ave: Building permit has been issued and work is in progress.  
508 Macy Street: Work has started, staff has approved the replacement window. Applicant has 
ordered replacement windows. Waiting on window and siding.  
418 Macy Street: Work has not started. Applicant was having difficulty finding smooth cement 
fiberboard. Siding is now installed. 
434 College Ave: Building permit issued. Demolition of attached addition is complete.  
720 S Lahoma Ave: Work as not yet started. 
 
COA extension requests: This was the last meeting such a request will need to be made.   
 

* 
 
Item No. 8, being: Discussion of progress report regarding the FY 2022-2023 CLG Grant 
Projects. 
 

2022-2023 Certified Local Government Grant Funds Budget 
    
PROJECT 1: Educational Training - $1,500 
PROJECT 2: Memberships Dues for NAPC - $150 
PROJECT 3: Development of Historic Walking Tour Mobile App $5,500 
PROJECT 4: Quarterly Education Postcard - $1,500 
Total Budget of CLG Funds - $8,650 
 

* 
 

Staff prepared and mailed a fall educational postcard to the property owners located in 
Chautauqua, Miller and Southridge Historic Districts.  
 
Item No. 9, being: Miscellaneous comments of the Historic District Commission and City 
Staff. 
 
Item No. 10, being: Adjournment. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:41p.m. 
 
Passed and approved this ______th day of _______, 2022. 
 
 
_______________________ 

Emily Wilkins, Chair 
Historic District Commission 



Historic District Commission 
October 3, 2022 
Page 7 of 8 
 
 
 
 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         610 Miller Avenue 
          HD 22-25 
 

 
 
 

1 

Property Location:  610 Miller Ave 
Chautauqua Historic District  
 

Owner: Joyce Green 
 
Representative:  Lance Pound, Source Management Services   

   
 
Request: HD (22-25) Consideration of Certificate of Appropriateness requests at 
610 Miller Avenue submitted by Lance Pound, with Source Management Services, 
LLC for Joyce Green for:  

a. Replacement and modification of the roof structure; 
b. Replacement of discontinued metal roofing material with similar metal 

roofing material; 
c. Installation of solar panels on the flat roof top. 

 
Historical Information: 
2004 Miller Historic District National Registry Nomination Survey states: 
610 South Miller Avenue. Ca. 1923. Bungalow/Craftsman. This contributing, two-story, 
stucco, single dwelling is a noteworthy example of a Craftsman house featuring a strong 
Spanish Colonial Revival influence. The building has a stucco foundation and a flat roof 
with vinyl-clad flat parapets and red ceramic tile canopies. The wood windows are 
vertical, four-over-one, hung and the wood door is glazed paneled with sidelights. The 
wraparound porch has full-height stucco piers and stucco walls with rectangular openings 
featuring rounded corners and contrasting banding. Other exterior features include a 
stucco-clad exterior chimney on the north side. Decorative details include exposed rafters 
and double and ribbon windows. 
 
Sanborn Insurance Maps 
The 1944 Sanborn Insurance Map indicates the principal structure in the same location 
with a similar configuration as seen today. The Map also indicates a garage structure 
behind the house, which is no longer present. 
 
Background Information: 
Property History  
The following Certificates of Appropriateness (COA) requests for this property have been 
approved or denied for this property:  
 
October 3, 2022 - A COA was issued for the removal of vinyl siding and replacement of 
damaged wood siding on all exterior elevations. The request for replacement and 
modification of the roof structure, replacement of discontinued metal roofing material with 
similar metal roofing material, and for installation of solar panels were postponed to allow 
the applicant to provide additional information.  
 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         610 Miller Avenue 
          HD 22-25 
 

 
 
 

2 

 
 
Project Description:   
The property owner, Joyce Green, is seeking to repair damage suffered to the exterior 
walls and roof from the October 21, 2021 hail storm that hit the Miller Historic District. 
 
At last month’s meeting, the Commission approved the removal of both the vinyl and 
wood siding and the replacement with new wood siding that has the same profile as the 
original wood siding for the exterior walls.   
 
In addition, the original red “barrel” metal roof panels were heavily damaged and the 
applicant is seeking to replace these metal panels with an appropriate metal roof panel. 
At last month’s meeting, the Commission determined that none of the submitted metal 
panel samples were acceptable replacements. The Commission suggested the applicant 
try seeking aluminum metal panel samples instead of just steel panel samples. The 
Commission postponed this request to a future meeting to allow the applicant time to 
gather more samples. As of this writing of this report, the applicant had not received any 
additional samples, however, she is hopeful that they will arrive prior to the meeting and 
she will share those samples the night of the meeting. 
 
At last month’s meeting, the applicant’s contractor had found the roof awnings, which 
hold the red metal roof panels, were severely deteriorated and needed to be replaced in 
their entirety. In addition, the contractor has indicated that the roof awnings will need to 
be strengthened in order to support the weight of the metal roof panes. The contractor 
had proposed the addition of a support arms on the underside of the roof awning along 
the entire expanse of the awning to provide the additional strength. Upon discussion, the 
Commission determined that more information about the components of the roof awnings 
was needed in order to determine if indeed a brace was needed. The Commission 
postponed this request to allow the applicant’s contractor time to remove the deteriorated 
wall and roof awnings to reveal the underlying support structures for the roof awning and 
to provide his findings at the next Commission meeting. 
 
Replacement of the exterior walls approved at last month’s meeting has been delayed 
due to rain. As of writing of this report, the contractor hopes to start on the project early 
next week and then will be able to report the results of his investigation of the underlying 
structure of the roof awning’s support system at the meeting.   
 
Ms. Green is also interested in installing solar panels on the flat part of the roof structure. 
Since the proposed solar panels may have limited visibility from the right-of-way, they 
would require Commission’s review and approval. At last month’s meeting, the 
Commission requested drawings that would illustrate the solar panel attachment to the 
roof. This item was postponed to allow time for the applicant to have the drawings 
prepared. The applicant has been focused on the other two proposed work items and at 
this time does not have the solar panel drawings and is requesting postponement to a 
future meeting.  



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         610 Miller Avenue 
          HD 22-25 
 

 
 
 

3 

 
  
Preservation Guidelines:  
Exterior Walls 
3.1 Standards for Administrative Bypass  
The following items can receive a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) through the 
Administrative Bypass process if they meet the criteria listed.  If they do not meet the 
criteria, the application will be forwarded to the Historic District Commission for a full 
review.  
 
.1 Removal of wall materials.  Removal of non-original or contemporary synthetic 
materials to reveal existing historic materials is permitted.  If existing historic siding 
material underneath the non-original or contemporary synthetic materials has been 
removed, the reinstallation of appropriate/compatible material requires review by the 
Historic District Commission. 
 
3.2 Guidelines  
A review by the Historic District Commission will use the following criteria for the 
issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA): 
 
.1 Preserve Original Walls.  Retain and preserve exterior walls that contribute to the 
overall historic form and character of a building, including functional and decorative 
features and details. 
.2 Retain Original Building Materials.  Retain and preserve exterior wall materials 
that contribute to the overall historic character of a building. 
.3 Replace Only Deteriorated Portions.  If replacement of a deteriorated wall or 
feature is necessary, replace only the deteriorated portion in-kind rather than the entire 
feature.  Match the original in material, design, dimension, detail, texture, and pattern.  
Compatible substitute materials can be considered if in-kind replacement material are not 
available or feasible. 
.4 Avoid Covering Original Materials. Building materials and decorative elements 
are important character-defining components of historic buildings.  It is not appropriate to 
remove or cover any wall material or detail with coatings or contemporary substitute 
materials.  Vinyl and aluminum siding is not appropriate for use in historic districts.  
.5 Replace Missing Features.  When replacing an exterior wall or feature, replace it 
with a new wall or feature based on accurate documentation of the original or a new 
design that is compatible with the historic character of the building and the district.  
Compatible substitute materials can be considered if in-kind replacement material are not 
available or feasible. 
.6 Avoid False Historical Appearances.  Features or details of walls and fences 
that are introduced to a property shall reflect its style, period, and design.  Fences and 
walls features shall not create a false historical appearance by reflecting other time 
periods, styles, or geographic regions of the country. 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         610 Miller Avenue 
          HD 22-25 
 

 
 
 

4 

.7 Substitute Materials.  Cement fiberboard (e.g. Hardiplank® siding) will be 
considered on a case-by-case basis.  Exterior insulating and finish systems (EIFS) will 
not be considered for use in historic structures. 
 
Wood Features 
3.3 Guidelines  
A review by the Historic District Commission will use the following criteria for the 
issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA): 
 
.1 Preserve Original Features.  Retain and preserve wood features that contribute 
to the overall historic character of a building, including siding, shingles, cornices, 
brackets, pediments, columns, balustrades, and architectural trim. 
.2 Replace Only Deteriorated Elements.  If replacement of a deteriorated details or 
element of a wood feature is necessary, replace only the deteriorated detail or element 
in-kind rather than the entire feature.  Match the original in design, dimension, texture, 
and material.  Compatible substitute materials can be considered if in-kind replacement 
material are not available or feasible. 
.3 Replace Missing Features. Replace missing wooden features based on accurate 
documentation of the missing original or a new design compatible in scale, size, material, 
and texture, with the style, period, and design of the historic building and the district as a 
whole.  Compatible substitute materials can be considered if in-kind replacement material 
are not available or feasible. 
.4 Avoid False Historical Appearances.  Features or details that are introduced to 
a house shall reflect its style, period, and design.  Features shall not create a false 
historical appearance by reflecting other time periods, styles, or geographic regions of 
the country. 
.5 Rough Sawn Wood.  Avoid using rough sawn wood as is not appropriate for 
installation in historic buildings. 
.6 Skirts.  All solid skirt materials shall have vents installed to allow air to pass under 
the house and eliminate moisture from the wood foundation. 
.7 Treated Wood.  All treated wood shall be thoroughly dried prior to installation. 
.8 Cleaning.  Do not use excessive water pressure or sandblasting on wood 
surfaces as it pits the wood. 
.9 Defining Features.  Retain corner boards and window trim as they are character-
defining features on houses with wood siding or replaced with historic accuracy. 
 
Roofs 
3.9 Standards for Administrative Bypass  
The following items can receive a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) through the 
Administrative Bypass process if they meet the criteria listed.  If they do not meet the 
criteria, the application will be forwarded to the Historic District Commission for a full 
review. 
 .1 Re-Roofing.  Reroofing with in-kind materials with no change to the shape, pitch, 
or structure of the roof.  Replacement in-kind of existing, non-historic composition roofing 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         610 Miller Avenue 
          HD 22-25 
 

 
 
 

5 

material with any type of contemporary asphalt, laminated or composition shingles is not 
subject to review and does not require a Certificate of Appropriateness.  
.2 Gutters.  Replacement or and installation of non-historic gutters and downspouts 
in-kind is not subject to review and does not require a Certificate of Appropriateness. 
.3 New Features.  New roof features such as skylights, solar tubes, and equipment 
such as power ventilators, solar collectors, photovoltaics, and antennae that are:  

a. Located on rear of the structure, and not visible from the front right of way 
right-of-way.  Corner lots are considered to have two front elevations. 

.4 Removal of Secondary Chimneys. The removal of a non-functional, secondary 
chimney is allowed by Administrative Bypass if not visible from the front right-of-way.   
 
3.10 Guidelines  
A review by the Historic District Commission will use the following criteria for the 
issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA): 
 
.1 Preserve Original Features.  Retain and preserve historic wood, tile and slate 
roofs as well as roof features that contribute to the overall historic character of a building, 
such as cresting, dormers, cupolas, and cornices. 
.2 Replace Only Deteriorated Portions of Roof Features.  If replacement of a 
deteriorated roof feature is necessary, replace only the deteriorated portion in-kind to 
match the original feature in design, dimension, detail, and material.  Compatible 
substitute materials can be considered if in-kind replacement material are not available or 
feasible. 
.3 Replacements Match Original.  If full replacement of historic roofing material or 
feature is necessary, replace it in-kind, matching the original in scale, detail, pattern, 
design, and material.  Compatible substitute materials can be considered if in-kind 
replacement material are not available or feasible. 
.4 Replace Missing Features. Replace missing roof features based on accurate 
documentation of the missing original or a new design compatible in scale, size, and 
material with the style, period, and design of the historic building and the district as a 
whole. 
.5 Built-In Gutters.  Retain and preserve built-in gutter systems. 
.6 Locate New Features and Mechanical Equipment Carefully.  New roof features 
such as dormers, skylights, and solar tubes, and equipment such as power ventilators, 
solar collectors, photovoltaics, and antennae, shall be introduced carefully so as not to 
compromise the historic roof design, or damage character-defining roof materials, or the 
overall character of the historic district.  
.7 Retain the Original Roof Form and Details.  If attic space is converted into living 
space and dormers are added, retain the original roof pitch to avoid a “pop-up” 
appearance, especially on the front façade.  Avoid adding details that did not exist 
originally. 
.8 Existing Dormers.  Original dormers shall be preserved and only elements 
beyond repair may be replaced.  If a replacement is needed, original size and shape shall 
be maintained. 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         610 Miller Avenue 
          HD 22-25 
 

 
 
 

6 

.9 New Dormers.  New dormers must be functional, to allow light in or to add more 
living space, they should not be merely decorative and should be in keeping with the 
style of the historic house.  They shall be located on the rear and inset from first-floor 
side wall below it.  Set new dormers back from eave and do not extend above the ridge 
of roof. 
.10 Alternative Materials for Roofs.  Metal simulated clay, slate or other designs as 
well as other materials will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis to see if appropriate to 
the historic structure and compatible with the surrounding historic district.  
 
Utilities and Energy Retrofit  
3.17 Standards for Administrative Bypass  
The following items can receive a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) through the 
Administrative Bypass process if they meet the criteria listed.  If they do not meet the 
criteria, the application will be forwarded to the Historic District Commission for a full 
review. 
.1 Storm Windows and Doors.  Interior storm windows are encouraged and do not 
require a COA.  Exterior storm windows are allowable with a COA by administrative 
bypass if they meet the following criteria: 

a. Metal storm windows and windows with painted, stained, or baked-enamel finish 
color compatible with the color of the existing window or door.  Unfinished or clear 
anodized aluminum finishes are not permitted.  

b. Storm windows and doors that do not obscure or damage the existing 
window/door and/or frame.  

.2 Solar Panels.  Solar panels installed on the “back” side of the house, or on the 
roof where they are not visible from the front right-of-way or public view. 
.3 Freestanding Solar Racks.  Solar racks can be installed at the rear of the 
property to create a shade structure or can be installed on an outbuilding, such as a 
garage roof, as long as they meet the following: 

a. Located in the rear yard and not visible from the front right-of-way.  Not taller than 
the principal structure.  Less than 120 square feet.  

.4 Solar Tubes and Skylights.  If flat in profile and on the rear or back side of the 
house, and not visible from the front right-of-way. 
3.18 Guidelines  
A review by the Historic District Commission will use the following criteria for the 
issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA): 
1. Retain Inherent Energy-Conserving Features.  Retain and preserve the 
inherent energy-conserving features of historic buildings and their sites, including shade 
trees, porches, awnings, as well as operable windows, transoms, shutters, and blinds. 
2. Use Traditional Energy-Saving Practices.  Increase the thermal efficiency of 
historic buildings by observing appropriate traditional practices, such as weather stripping 
and caulking, and by introducing energy-efficient features such as awnings, operable 
shutters, and storm windows and doors, where appropriate. 
3. Solar Tubes and Skylights.  Solar Tubes and Skylights can add light to interior 
spaces and make attics spaces more useable.  Bubble-dome skylights are not 
appropriate for buildings within historic districts. 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         610 Miller Avenue 
          HD 22-25 
 

 
 
 

7 

4. Solar Panels.  Avoid installing solar panels on the street side of the house or 
permanently altering roof with the installation of solar panels.  Panels shall be installed 
flat and not alter the slope of the roof.  They shall be positioned behind existing 
architectural features such as parapets, dormers, and chimneys to limit their visibility. 
5. Compatibility.  Use solar panels and mounting systems that are compatible in 
color to the property’s roof materials. 
6. Free-Standing Solar Racks.  Free-standing solar racks larger than 120 square 
feet will be considered on a case-by-case basis.  Solar racks installed at the rear of the 
property with no or limited visibility and create a shade structure or installed on an 
outbuilding, such as on a garage roof. 
7. Low Pitch Roofs for Solar Panels.  Low pitch roofs may utilize low-profile panels 
on non-street-facing roof planes.  Avoid roof racks that elevate the panels or are at a 
different pitch than the roof.  
.8  Solar Shingles.  Solar shingles may be installed on sloped roof-surfaces and are 
less intrusive than panels.  However, removal of historic materials must be avoided. 
.9 Flat Roofs.  On structures with flat roofs, solar panel installations are to set back 
from the roof edge to minimize visibility.  Pitch and elevation shall be adjusted to reduce 
visibility from public right-of-way. 
 
Staff Comments:  
 
The request for replacement roof material, modification of the roof awing structure and 
the installation of solar panels were all postponed to allow the applicant time to gather 
additional information. The applicant anticipates being able to provide additional samples 
and information regarding the structure at the meeting. 
 
The Historic Preservation Guidelines for Roofs states that “the structure of the roof” 
should not be altered. Because the proposed supports will be an alteration to the original 
roof awning design and some supports may be visible from the street right-of-way, a 
review by the Commission is required to see if this meets the Preservation Guidelines. 
The applicant hopes to have pictures of the deteriorated roof awning to allow for a more 
complete discussion regarding the necessity of support arms for the roof awnings. If 
support arms are the ultimate request, the Commission would need to determine if the 
addition of support arms meets the Preservation Guidelines and whether it impacts this 
historic structure. 
 
The Historic Preservation Guidelines for Roofs require the review of roof replacements if 
the proposed material is different the original historic material. As stated earlier, the 
samples provided at last month’s meeting were not ideal, and the Commission requested 
additional samples. The applicant hopes to provide those samples at the meeting. The 
Commission would need to determine if the proposed metal panels meet the 
Preservation Guidelines and are an acceptable replacement material in this case.  
 
As indicated earlier, the applicant will be requesting to postpone the review of the solar 
panels to a later date.  



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         610 Miller Avenue 
          HD 22-25 
 

 
 
 

8 

 
Commission Action: Consideration of approval, rejection, amendment, and/or 
postponement of Certificate of Appropriateness requests at 610 Miller Avenue submitted 
by Lance Pound, with Source Management Services, LLC for Joyce Green for:  

a. Replacement and modification of the roof structure; 
b. Replacement of discontinued metal roofing material with similar metal 

roofing material; 
c. Installation of solar panels on the flat roof top. 















































 

 

 



1/4" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR
ELEVATION

A-1

A EAST ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0'

THESE DOCUMENTS AND IMAGES ARE
THE SOLE PROPERTY OF PRA AND ARE
NOT TO REPRODUCED OR COPIED IN ANY
FORM WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM PRA.

COPYRIGHT 2022
© PRA

DRAWING SCALE:
PROJECT #:
DATE:
DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

9-08-2022
ROS
ROS
ROS

PROJECT:

PRA
© 2022

TITLE:

SHEET:

0798

PO BOX 2618
BLANCHARD, OK 73010
RICHARD@PRA-PRC.COM
PHONE: 405-255-8202

GREEN RESIDENCE

RICHARD OMAR
STARKS

a6013

TH
ES

E 
D

R
A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E 

A
N
D

 S
H
A
LL

 B
E 

C
O

N
S
ID

ER
ED

 A
S
 A

 B
U
IL

D
ER

'S
 S

ET
,

A
N
D

 T
H
ER

EF
O

R
E 

S
C

H
EM

A
TI

C
 IN

 N
A
TU

R
E 

A
N
D

 IN
TE

N
T.

  
TH

ES
E 

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
A
R
E 

N
O

T 
A
N
D

 S
H
A
LL

 N
O

T 
B
E 

C
O

N
S
ID

ER
ED

 A
S
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E 
C

O
N
S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
D

O
C

U
M

EN
TS

. 
 IN

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N
, 
TH

E 
G

EN
ER

A
L 

C
O

N
TR

A
C
TO

R
 S

H
A
LL

, 
D

U
E 

TO
TH

E 
A
B
S
EN

C
E 

O
F 

N
O

TE
S
, 
D

ET
A
IL

S
, 
S
PE

C
IF

IC
A
TI

O
N
S
, 
ET

C
.,
 B

E
R
ES

PO
N
S
IB

LE
 F

O
R
 M

EE
TI

N
G

 T
H
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
 O

F 
A
LL

 A
PP

LI
C
A
B
LE

C
O

D
ES

 A
N
D

 O
R
D

IN
A
N
C
ES

 A
N
D

 T
H
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
 O

F 
A
LL

G
O

V
ER

N
M

EN
TA

L 
A
U
TH

O
R
IT

IE
S
 H

A
V
IN

G
 J

U
R
IS

D
IC

TI
O

N
 -

 A
S
 W

EL
L 

A
S

M
EE

TI
N
G

 A
LL

 A
C

C
EP

TA
B
LE

  
S
TA

N
D

A
R
D

S
 O

F 
C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N
. 
 IT

 IS
 T

H
E

O
W

N
ER

'S
 F

U
LL

 A
N
D

 T
O

TA
L 

R
ES

PO
N
S
IB

IL
IT

Y 
TO

 E
M

PL
O

Y 
TH

E 
S
ER

V
IC

ES
 O

F
A
 G

EN
ER

A
L 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R
, 
W

IT
H
 S

U
FF

IC
IE

N
T 

EX
PE

R
IE

N
C
E 

A
N
D

R
EF

ER
EN

C
ES

- 
A
S
 C

A
N
 B

E 
PR

O
V
EN

 B
Y 

PR
EV

IO
U
S
 P

R
O

JE
C

TS
 O

F 
A
 S

IM
IL

A
R

S
IZ

E,
 S

C
O

PE
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
PL

EX
IT

Y,
 W

H
O

 C
A
N
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
FU

LL
Y 

C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

TH
IS

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N
 P

R
O

JE
C
T.

  
IT

 S
H
A
LL

 B
E 

TH
E 

FU
LL

 A
N
D

 T
O

TA
L

R
ES

PO
N
S
IB

IL
IT

Y 
O

F 
S
A
ID

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R
 T

O
 O

B
TA

IN
 A

 B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 P

ER
M

IT
FO

R
 T

H
IS

 P
R
O

JE
C
T 

A
N
D

 C
O

M
PL

Y 
W

IT
H
 T

H
E 

D
U
TI

ES
 A

N
D

 R
ES

PO
N
S
IB

IL
IT

IE
S

TH
ER

EO
F.

PR
EL

IM
IN
AR

Y N
OT

FO
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TIO
N

610 MILLER AVE
NORMAN, OK 73069

8-12-22

REVISED 7-09-19

D WEST ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0'C SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0'

B NORTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0'



NEW PAINTED SIDING
AND TRIM

NEW PAINTED PARAPET
CAP FLASHING

NEW PAINTED FLASHING

NEW METAL ROOFING
AND TRIM

EXPOSED RAFTER TAIL

EXISTING STUCCO
COATED MASONRY

NEW SOFFIT PANEL AND TRIM-
OPTIONAL-VENT SOFFIT IF
INSTALLED

NEW ROOF DECK

NEW 2X6 RAFTER

NEW 2X6 LEDGER

NEW 2X6 LEDGER

NEW 2X6 LOOK-OUT
RAFTER

NEW MEMBRANE ROOF

1
'-9

"
1
0

"

EXISTING STUD WALL

3'-4"

NOTES:
-NEW 2X6 LOOK-OUT RAFTER REQUIRED FOR
STRUCTURAL PURPOSES. SOFFIT PANEL IS NOT EXISTING
AND MAY BE INSTALLED AT THE DISCRETION OF THE
OWNER AND A.H.J.

-EXISTING RAFTER TAIL ENDS HAVE BEEN REMOVED WITH
NEW EXTENSIONS APPLIED. THESE NEED TO BE REPLACED

1-1/2" = 1'-0"

ROOF
DETAIL

A-2

A TYPICAL ROOF/AWNING SECTION
SCALE: 1-1/2"=1'-0'

THESE DOCUMENTS AND IMAGES ARE
THE SOLE PROPERTY OF PRA AND ARE
NOT TO REPRODUCED OR COPIED IN ANY
FORM WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM PRA.

COPYRIGHT 2022
© PRA

DRAWING SCALE:
PROJECT #:
DATE:
DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

9-08-2022
ROS
ROS
ROS

PROJECT:

PRA
© 2022

TITLE:

SHEET:

0798

PO BOX 2618
BLANCHARD, OK 73010
RICHARD@PRA-PRC.COM
PHONE: 405-255-8202

GREEN RESIDENCE

RICHARD OMAR
STARKS

a6013

TH
ES

E 
D

R
A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E 

A
N
D

 S
H
A
LL

 B
E 

C
O

N
S
ID

ER
ED

 A
S
 A

 B
U
IL

D
ER

'S
 S

ET
,

A
N
D

 T
H
ER

EF
O

R
E 

S
C

H
EM

A
TI

C
 IN

 N
A
TU

R
E 

A
N
D

 IN
TE

N
T.

  
TH

ES
E 

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
A
R
E 

N
O

T 
A
N
D

 S
H
A
LL

 N
O

T 
B
E 

C
O

N
S
ID

ER
ED

 A
S
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E 
C

O
N
S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
D

O
C

U
M

EN
TS

. 
 IN

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N
, 
TH

E 
G

EN
ER

A
L 

C
O

N
TR

A
C
TO

R
 S

H
A
LL

, 
D

U
E 

TO
TH

E 
A
B
S
EN

C
E 

O
F 

N
O

TE
S
, 
D

ET
A
IL

S
, 
S
PE

C
IF

IC
A
TI

O
N
S
, 
ET

C
.,
 B

E
R
ES

PO
N
S
IB

LE
 F

O
R
 M

EE
TI

N
G

 T
H
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
 O

F 
A
LL

 A
PP

LI
C
A
B
LE

C
O

D
ES

 A
N
D

 O
R
D

IN
A
N
C
ES

 A
N
D

 T
H
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
 O

F 
A
LL

G
O

V
ER

N
M

EN
TA

L 
A
U
TH

O
R
IT

IE
S
 H

A
V
IN

G
 J

U
R
IS

D
IC

TI
O

N
 -

 A
S
 W

EL
L 

A
S

M
EE

TI
N
G

 A
LL

 A
C

C
EP

TA
B
LE

  
S
TA

N
D

A
R
D

S
 O

F 
C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N
. 
 IT

 IS
 T

H
E

O
W

N
ER

'S
 F

U
LL

 A
N
D

 T
O

TA
L 

R
ES

PO
N
S
IB

IL
IT

Y 
TO

 E
M

PL
O

Y 
TH

E 
S
ER

V
IC

ES
 O

F
A
 G

EN
ER

A
L 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R
, 
W

IT
H
 S

U
FF

IC
IE

N
T 

EX
PE

R
IE

N
C
E 

A
N
D

R
EF

ER
EN

C
ES

- 
A
S
 C

A
N
 B

E 
PR

O
V
EN

 B
Y 

PR
EV

IO
U
S
 P

R
O

JE
C

TS
 O

F 
A
 S

IM
IL

A
R

S
IZ

E,
 S

C
O

PE
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
PL

EX
IT

Y,
 W

H
O

 C
A
N
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
FU

LL
Y 

C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

TH
IS

C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N
 P

R
O

JE
C
T.

  
IT

 S
H
A
LL

 B
E 

TH
E 

FU
LL

 A
N
D

 T
O

TA
L

R
ES

PO
N
S
IB

IL
IT

Y 
O

F 
S
A
ID

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R
 T

O
 O

B
TA

IN
 A

 B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 P

ER
M

IT
FO

R
 T

H
IS

 P
R
O

JE
C
T 

A
N
D

 C
O

M
PL

Y 
W

IT
H
 T

H
E 

D
U
TI

ES
 A

N
D

 R
ES

PO
N
S
IB

IL
IT

IE
S

TH
ER

EO
F.

PR
EL

IM
IN
AR

Y N
OT

FO
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TIO
N

610 MILLER AVE
NORMAN, OK 73069

8-12-22

REVISED 7-09-19

PHOTO- FAILURE OF SPLICED RAFTER TAIL

PHOTO- FAILURE OF ROOF AND DECK

PHOTO- TYPICAL METAL ROOF PANEL AND HIP TRIM PHOTO- TYPICAL METAL ROOF PANEL, VALLEY,  AND HIP TRIM



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         412 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-29 
 

 
 
 

1 

Property Location:  412 Chautauqua Avenue 
Chautauqua Historic District  
 

Owner: Nancy and Ken VonBargen     
 
Request:  HD (22-29) Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness 
requests for the property located at 412 Chautauqua as follows:  

a. Replacement of the existing Masonite lap siding with cement 
fiberboard siding; 
b. Replacement of a wood garage door on a non-original garage 
with a metal garage door.  

 
Historical Information: 
2004 Chautauqua Historic District National Registry Nomination Survey states: 
412 South Chautauqua Avenue. Ca. 1913. Colonial Revival. This noncontributing, two-
story, weatherboard single dwelling has an asphalt covered, gambrel roof and a 
decorative concrete block foundation. The wood windows are one-over-one hung with 
metal storms. The wood door is glazed paneled. The wraparound porch has a hipped 
roof supported by a wood support and a turned, wood, spindle balustrade. The 1956 
Sanborn Fire Insurance map indicates the porch was full-width. Other exterior features 
include an interior brick chimney. Decorative details include fish scale shingles in the 
gable end, gable returns and double and triple windows. To the rear is a double car, 
weatherboard garage with an asphalt-covered, front-gabled roof and a single overhead 
door. The house is noncontributing due to a loss of integrity. 
 
Sanborn Maps 
The 1944 Sanborn map indicates the principal structure in the current location. The 
garage located at the rear corner of the house is post-1944 installed, prior to the 
establishment of the Chautauqua Historic District.  
 
Background Information: 
The following Certificates of Appropriateness (COA) requests for this property have been 
approved or denied for this property:  
 
Aug. 18, 1999 – A Certificate of Appropriateness by Administrative Bypass for the 
widening of the existing driveway was issued.  
 
April 7, 2003 – A Certificate of Appropriateness for an addition was issued.  
 
October 3, 2022 – Applicants requested and received feedback regarding the 
appropriate replacement material for the Masonite siding currently on the structure.  
 
Project Description:   
The property owners sought feedback from the Commission regarding appropriate 
replacement material for the exterior of their house at last month’s meeting. As a result of 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         412 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-29 
 

 
 
 

2 

that feedback, the applicants have returned with a COA request to replace the Masonite 
exterior siding with cement fiberboard siding.   
 
Additionally, the applicants wish to replace the Masonite garage door with a metal garage 
door on the non-historic garage.  
 
Historic District Ordinance & Guidelines: 
Historic District Ordinance 
Section 429.3.7 Certificates of Appropriateness 
(c): Submitting COA Application Materials. When applying for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness, the applicant shall furnish copies of all detailed site and building plans, 
elevations, perspectives, material samples, and specifications, with sufficient detail to 
clearly illustrate the applicant's intent. Applicants are encouraged to meet with the 
Historic Preservation Officer before submitting an application and may also request a 
meeting with the Historic District Commission before submitting an application in order to 
get feedback from the Commission on a forthcoming application. Applicants may also 
consult with the Historic Preservation Officer as needed during the review of the 
Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) application. Incomplete applications will not be 
forwarded to the Commission for review. (0-0910-12) 
 
Preservation Guidelines:  
Exterior Walls 
3.1 Standards for Administrative Bypass  
The following items can receive a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) through the 
Administrative Bypass process if they meet the criteria listed.  If they do not meet the 
criteria, the application will be forwarded to the Historic District Commission for a full 
review.  
 
.1 Removal of wall materials.  Removal of non-original or contemporary synthetic 
materials to reveal existing historic materials is permitted.  If existing historic siding 
material underneath the non-original or contemporary synthetic materials has been 
removed, the reinstallation of appropriate/compatible material requires review by the 
Historic District Commission. 
 
3.2 Guidelines  
A review by the Historic District Commission will use the following criteria for the 
issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA): 
 
.1 Preserve Original Walls.  Retain and preserve exterior walls that contribute to the 
overall historic form and character of a building, including functional and decorative 
features and details. 
.2 Retain Original Building Materials.  Retain and preserve exterior wall materials 
that contribute to the overall historic character of a building. 
.3 Replace Only Deteriorated Portions.  If replacement of a deteriorated wall or 
feature is necessary, replace only the deteriorated portion in-kind rather than the entire 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         412 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-29 
 

 
 
 

3 

feature.  Match the original in material, design, dimension, detail, texture, and pattern.  
Compatible substitute materials can be considered if in-kind replacement material are not 
available or feasible. 
.4 Avoid Covering Original Materials. Building materials and decorative elements 
are important character-defining components of historic buildings.  It is not appropriate to 
remove or cover any wall material or detail with coatings or contemporary substitute 
materials.  Vinyl and aluminum siding is not appropriate for use in historic districts.  
.5 Replace Missing Features.  When replacing an exterior wall or feature, replace it 
with a new wall or feature based on accurate documentation of the original or a new 
design that is compatible with the historic character of the building and the district.  
Compatible substitute materials can be considered if in-kind replacement material are not 
available or feasible. 
.6 Avoid False Historical Appearances.  Features or details of walls and fences 
that are introduced to a property shall reflect its style, period, and design.  Fences and 
walls features shall not create a false historical appearance by reflecting other time 
periods, styles, or geographic regions of the country. 
.7 Substitute Materials.  Cement fiberboard (e.g. Hardiplank® siding) will be 
considered on a case-by-case basis.  Exterior insulating and finish systems (EIFS) will 
not be considered for use in historic structures. 
 
Garages  
2.3 Standards for Administrative Bypass  
The following items can receive a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) through the 
Administrative Bypass process if they meet the criteria listed. If they do not meet the 
criteria, the application will be forwarded to the Historic District Commission for a full 
review.  
.1 Garage Door Replacement. 
For non-historic garages that face the alleyway or that are not visible from the right-of-
way, the following is allowed: 

a.  Wood, wood composite or a raised metal panel garage door. 
b.  The original size, height and width of doors must be maintained.  
c.  Designs must match the style of the original garage door and/or garage. 
 

2.4 Guidelines  
A review by the Historic District Commission will use the following criteria for the 
issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA): 
.1 Preserve Historic Garage Structures.  Retain and preserve garages in their 
original locations and configurations.  Even if the function changes, the exterior 
appearance shall remain the same.  
.2 Preserve Original Materials.  Retain and preserve character-defining materials, 
features, and details of historic garages, including foundations, siding, masonry, 
windows, garage doors, and architectural trim.  When necessary, repair character-
defining materials, features, and details of historic garages in-kind according to pertinent 
guidelines. 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         412 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-29 
 

 
 
 

4 

.3 Replace Only Deteriorated Portions.  If replacement of a deteriorated element 
or detail of a historic garage is necessary, replace only the deteriorated portion in-kind 
rather than replacing the entire feature.  Match the original in design, dimension, texture, 
and material. Consider compatible substitute materials only if the original materials are 
no longer available. 
.4 Request for Garage Demolitions.  A request to demolition a historic garage will 
utilize the following in determining the eligibility for demolition:  

a. An existing structure of architectural or historical significance shall be retained if 
repairs are reasonably possible.  

b. An existing structure is dilapidated, leaning, lacking a solid foundation, or of 
substandard construction, it may be eligible for demolition 

c. An existing structure is 240 square feet or less, it may be eligible for demolition. 
d. An existing structure was built after the period of significance; it may be eligible for 

demolition. 
e. The removal of existing historic structure will enable access to the rear yard where 

no access currently exists; it may be eligible for demolition. 
.5   New Garage Construction.  A new garage shall be compatible in form, scale, 
size, materials, features, and finish with the principal structure.  The following criteria will 
be considered for a new garage constructed where there is currently no historic structure: 

a. The new structure will utilize alley access if available. 
b. The new footprint will be 575 square feet or 50% of the footprint of the principal 

structure, whichever is smaller.  
c. The cumulative of square footages for all garage structures on the lot, shall be no 

greater than the footprint of the principal structure.   
d. New garage are to be subservient to the principal structure and in no case will the 

garage structure be taller, wider or deeper than the principal structure.   
e. The proposed construction will preserve existing trees. 
f. Maximum of two garages are allowed per site. 

.6   New Garage Height.  New garage structures shall be the traditional height and 
proportion of garages in the district.  New garages in blocks that contain only one-story 
garages shall be one-story.  One and a half story and two-story garages may be built if 
located on a block where one and a half story and two-story garages are dominant or if 
adjacent properties contain similar height garages.  The wall height and height of roof 
ridge are to be no greater than the principal structure. 
.7   New Garage Location.  New garages structures that are not replacing a historic 
garage are to be located behind the principal structure in the rear yard with limited or no 
visibility from the front right-of-way. Garages replacing historic garages shall maintain the 
location and configuration of a historic garage, typically at the end of a front driveway.  
Such garages shall be located behind the back elevation of the principal structure.  
.8  New Garage Materials.  The following may be considered on a case-by-case 
basis for new garages: 

a. Acceptable materials include wood, brick and stone masonry, and stucco. 
Fiber cement products for new garage construction located off an alleyway or if 
setback behind the rear of the house will be considered on a case-by-case 
basis.  It should be noted that wood siding does not have “wood grain.”  Only 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         412 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-29 
 

 
 
 

5 

smooth cement board is permitted.   The use of vinyl, Masonite, aluminum or 
other metal sidings is prohibited.  

b. Aluminum clad doors and windows are allowed for garages located of an 
alleyway or behind the rear elevation of the house, with no or limited visibility 
from the front right-of-way. 

c. Wood, wood composite or metal overhead garage doors with wood/wood 
composite trim are allowed. 

d. Garage doors shall be a single width.  Double width garage doors will be 
considered on a case-by-case basis.  

.9 Additions to Garage Structures.  Additions to existing garages may be 
appropriate if not visible from the front right-of-way.  Additions shall not be greater than 
the footprint of the existing garage.  Additions must match the materials and design of 
exiting garage structure. 
.10  Reconstruction of Historic Garage.  The reconstruction of out buildings shall be 
based on historic evidence, such as photographs, Sanborn maps or other 
documentation.  If no such evidence exists, the design should be derived from the 
architectural style of the principal building and historic patterns and characteristics of the 
historic district.  Wood, brick and stucco are appropriate materials for reconstruction of a 
historic garage.  Overhead garage doors with the appearance of double doors will be 
considered on a case-by-case basis.  Historic garages shall be located at the end of a 
driveway along the side property line and face the front street right-of way.  
.11   Replacement Garage Doors.  Retain and preserve wood overhead garage doors 
on historic garages.  Retain double doors if possible.  Replacement overhead garage 
doors with the appearance of double doors will be considered on a case-by-case basis.  
For historic garages, and garages that face the front or are visible from the right-of-way 
the following replacement door is allowed: 
a.   Wood is preferred.  However, wood composite or metal with composite trim can be 
considered on a case-by-case basis.  Vinyl is prohibited.  
b.   The original size, height and width of doors must be maintained.  
c.   Designs must match the style of the original historic garage door.   
 
.12  Carports.  Carports shall be unattached to the primary structure and meet the 
following: 

a. Located in the rear yard behind the principal structure, with no visibility from the 
front right-of-way(s).  Corner lots are considered to have two front elevations. 

b. Constructed of wood or masonry.  Cement fiberboard to be considered on a case-
by-case basis. 

c. Maximum footprint size of 400 square feet with an eave height no greater than 10 
feet. 

 In no case shall the carport be taller, wider or deeper than the historic principal structure 
of the lot. 
 
Staff Comments:  
The structure at 412 Chautauqua is a non-contributing structure to the Chautauqua 
Historic District due to loss of historic integrity. The house had significant exterior 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         412 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-29 
 

 
 
 

6 

modifications prior to establishment of the Chautauqua Historic District in 1995. 
Modifications include the covering of the original exterior wall material and the 
enclosure/removal of the full-width front porch.  
 
At some point prior to the establishment of the Chautauqua Historic District, the original 
wood siding was covered with stucco. The stucco and wood siding were removed some 
years ago and replaced with Masonite siding. 
 
The Masonite siding currently on the house was damaged in the October 2021 hail 
storm. The owners have been working through the insurance process as well as 
researching possible replacement material. The applicants sought feedback at last 
month’s meeting as to the appropriate replacement material. As a result, the applicants 
are returning this month with a request to replace the Masonite siding with cement 
fiberboard with a 6” smooth cement fiberboard.  
 
The Historic Preservation Guidelines encourage the retention of exterior wall materials on 
historic structures. The current Masonite wall material is neither historic nor a compatible 
material. The Guidelines do not specifically speak to replacement of non-original 
materials with modern day materials on non-contributing structures. The Historic 
Preservation Guidelines for Walls allows for review of the use of cement fiberboard on a 
case-by-case basis.  
 
It should be noted that the Commission has routinely allowed cement fiberboard for 
additions and accessory structures in the rear yard. Additionally, the Commission has 
approved three requests in the last year for the use of cement fiberboard as a 
replacement material for structures that had non-original wall materials. Those three 
properties are 418 Macy Street, 508 Macy Street, and 904 Classen Boulevard and they 
are all non-contributing structures to their Districts.  
 
The non-historic garage structure has an overhead door that is deteriorated. The 
applicants wishes to replace the Masonite door with an overhead metal garage door. The 
Preservation Guidelines require review by the Commission if the garage door faces the 
front right-of-way. The Guidelines further indicate that acceptable replacement materials 
are wood, wood composite, or metal with wood/wood composite trim. The VonBargen’s 
contractor has expressed concern about the addition of wood composite trim to the metal 
overhead garage door they have selected. The applicants are therefore requesting a 
metal overhead garage door with the addition of faux metal hinges and door handles that 
will create a the look of a carriage house. 
 
The Commission would need to determine if the requested exterior siding and 
replacement overhead garage door meet the Preservation Guidelines and are compatible 
with the District as a whole.   
 
Commission Action: Approve, deny, amend, or postpone HD (22-29) Certificate of 
Appropriateness requests for the property located at 412 Chautauqua as follows:  



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         412 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-29 
 

 
 
 

7 

 
a. replacement of existing Masonite lap siding with cement fiberboard siding; 
b. replacement of wood garage door on non-original garage with a metal 

garage door. 
 





























Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         645 S Lahoma Ave 

HD 22-28 
 
 

 
 
 

1 

Property Location:  645 S Lahoma Ave  
Chautauqua Historic District 

 
COA Request:   HD (22-30) Commission review and feedback at 635 
Chautauqua Avenue submitted by Barrett Williamson for Joe Deleon for: 

a. Addition to the house; 
b. Removal of existing driveway; 
c. Installation of new approach and drive on south side of the house; 
d. Construction of new two-story garage in rear yard; 
e. Installation of a 6’ fence side yard fence.  

 
Applicant 
Representative: Bob Monnett, Sonward Construction 
 
Owner: Vicki Dollarhide 

 
Background Information: 
2004 Chautauqua Historic District Nomination Survey Information: 
645 S Lahoma Avenue. Ca. 1925. Colonial Revival. This contributing, two-story, brick 
single dwelling has an asphalt-covered, hipped roof and a brick foundation. The wood 
windows are six-over-six hung with metal storms. The wood door is paneled.  The 
entry porch is integral with brick arched openings featuring stone keystone and 
recessed entry. Other exterior features include a brick exterior chimney on the south 
side. Decorative details include double windows, arched windows on the first floor with 
decorative brickwork matching the porch openings and boxed eaves. To the northeast 
side is a flat-roofed, metal carport in front of a flat-roofed, weatherboard building with 
two wood, glazed, paneled doors. 
 
Sanborn Map Information 
The primary structure is indicated in its present location on the 1944 Sanborn maps. 
There has been a post-1944 addition on the rear of the structure.  
 
Property History:  
The following Certificates of Appropriateness (COA) requests for this property have 
been approved or denied for this property:  
 
July 7, 2014 - A COA was granted for the installation of a 7-foot privacy fence along 
the eastern edge of the property. The fence was to taper to 4 feet as it meets the 
sidewalk on the south side of the house.  
 
Project Description:   
Like many Historic District property owners, Mrs. Dollarhide suffered extensive 
damage to her roof during the October 10, 2021 hail storm that struck Norman. The 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         645 S Lahoma Ave 

HD 22-28 
 
 

 
 
 

2 

damaged roof material appears to be the original asbestos-based tiles which have 
been laid on point creating a diamond pattern. 
 
Since the current roof material is no longer available, the property owner and the 
applicant’s contractor, Bob Monnet, with Sonward Construction, have researched 
extensively for roof material that would emulate both the material, size and design of 
the existing roof.  Their research did not find any alternative roof materials which 
match the existing 16” x 16” roof tiles. Since there are not similar roof tiles in an 
alternative material, the property owner is proposing to emulate a rectangular-shaped 
slate roof with DaVinci composite roof panels.  
 
Since this proposed roof material is a different material and design from the existing 
roof material, it requires review and approval by the Commission.   
  
Ordinances & Guidelines: 
Historic District Ordinance 
429.3.1(g): To safeguard the heritage of the City by preserving and regulating historic 
district structures in such a way that maintains or restores their historic integrity while 
allowing modern day uses and conveniences for their residents. (0-0910-12). 
 
Roofs 
3.9 Standards for Administrative Bypass  
The following items can receive a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) through the 
Administrative Bypass process if they meet the criteria listed.  If they do not meet the 
criteria, the application will be forwarded to the Historic District Commission for a full 
review. 
 .1 Re-Roofing.  Reroofing with in-kind materials with no change to the shape, 
pitch, or structure of the roof.  Replacement in-kind of existing, non-historic 
composition roofing material with any type of contemporary asphalt, laminated or 
composition shingles is not subject to review and does not require a Certificate of 
Appropriateness.  
.2 Gutters.  Replacement or and installation of non-historic gutters and 
downspouts in-kind is not subject to review and does not require a Certificate of 
Appropriateness. 
.3 New Features.  New roof features such as skylights, solar tubes, and 
equipment such as power ventilators, solar collectors, photovoltaics, and antennae 
that are:  

a. Located on rear of the structure, and not visible from the front right of way 
right-of-way.  Corner lots are considered to have two front elevations. 

.4 Removal of Secondary Chimneys. The removal of a non-functional, 
secondary chimney is allowed by Administrative Bypass if not visible from the front 
right-of-way.   
 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         645 S Lahoma Ave 

HD 22-28 
 
 

 
 
 

3 

3.10 Guidelines  
A review by the Historic District Commission will use the following criteria for the 
issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA): 
 
.1 Preserve Original Features.  Retain and preserve historic wood, tile and slate 
roofs as well as roof features that contribute to the overall historic character of a 
building, such as cresting, dormers, cupolas, and cornices. 
.2 Replace Only Deteriorated Portions of Roof Features.  If replacement of a 
deteriorated roof feature is necessary, replace only the deteriorated portion in-kind to 
match the original feature in design, dimension, detail, and material.  Compatible 
substitute materials can be considered if in-kind replacement material are not available 
or feasible. 
.3 Replacements Match Original.  If full replacement of historic roofing material 
or feature is necessary, replace it in-kind, matching the original in scale, detail, pattern, 
design, and material.  Compatible substitute materials can be considered if in-kind 
replacement material are not available or feasible. 
.4 Replace Missing Features. Replace missing roof features based on accurate 
documentation of the missing original or a new design compatible in scale, size, and 
material with the style, period, and design of the historic building and the district as a 
whole. 
.5 Built-In Gutters.  Retain and preserve built-in gutter systems. 
.6 Locate New Features and Mechanical Equipment Carefully.  New roof 
features such as dormers, skylights, and solar tubes, and equipment such as power 
ventilators, solar collectors, photovoltaics, and antennae, shall be introduced carefully 
so as not to compromise the historic roof design, or damage character-defining roof 
materials, or the overall character of the historic district.  
.7 Retain the Original Roof Form and Details.  If attic space is converted into 
living space and dormers are added, retain the original roof pitch to avoid a “pop-up” 
appearance, especially on the front façade.  Avoid adding details that did not exist 
originally. 
.8 Existing Dormers.  Original dormers shall be preserved and only elements 
beyond repair may be replaced.  If a replacement is needed, original size and shape 
shall be maintained. 
.9 New Dormers.  New dormers must be functional, to allow light in or to add 
more living space, they should not be merely decorative and should be in keeping with 
the style of the historic house.  They shall be located on the rear and inset from first-
floor side wall below it.  Set new dormers back from eave and do not extend above the 
ridge of roof. 
.10 Alternative Materials for Roofs.  Metal simulated clay, slate or other designs 
as well as other materials will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis to see if 
appropriate to the historic structure and compatible with the surrounding historic 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         645 S Lahoma Ave 

HD 22-28 
 
 

 
 
 

4 

district.  
 
 
 
Staff Comments: 
The original asbestos-based roof tiles currently on this structure are not replaceable 
and best historic practices would suggest replacement with an alternative roof material 
of similar size, appearance and design. The current roof is comprised of 16” x 16” 
asbestos tiles laid on point to give the roof a diamond pattern. However, there does 
not appear to be any materials currently available on the market of the same size and 
thickness as the current tiles nor any materials that will emulate a similar sized 
diamond pattern.  
 
The property owner and her contractor are proposing the composite based DaVinci 
“slate” roof material which has a rectangular appearance. The property owner, after 
much thought and research believes, the DaVinci slate roof material is the best 
alternative material due to its appearance, durability and cost effectiveness.  
 
Mrs. Dollarhide realizes that modern day composition roof material would be allowed, 
however, she feels that such a roof would deteriorate the historic appearance of her 
house. Additionally, she feels modern day composition roofs do not have the durability 
that she is seeking. While real slate is a possibility, it would be cost prohibitive for her 
to install.  
 
Staff would note that there have been two other similar roof replacements in the 
Historic Districts. A COA request was made for the structure located at 648 S. 
Lahoma, which is across the street from this request. That house also had asbestos 
tile laid in a diamond pattern. That request was made prior to the adoption of the 
updated Historic Preservation Guidelines, and was done through the Administrative 
Bypass process. At that time, staff consulted with the State Historic Preservation 
Office which suggested a composition roof shingle with a diamond pattern.  This 
material was approved by staff, and the diamond pattern composition roof was 
installed. However, it should be noted that the installed diamond pattern of the 
composition roof material installed is smaller and of a different color than the original 
roof.  
 
The second similar roof replacement request was reviewed by the Commission for the 
house at 800 Miller Avenue. This structure had the original asbestos large rectangular 
terra cotta tiles with a slate appearance. The applicant was not able to find an 
alternative roof material that was affordable with a similar size and dimensions as the 
existing large rectangular tiles. The Commission ultimately approved a composition 
roof material in a rectangular pattern for the replacement of that roof. The approved 
composition roof tile in this case was also smaller than the original tiles. This roof has 
also been installed.   



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         645 S Lahoma Ave 

HD 22-28 
 
 

 
 
 

5 

 
The Commission will need to determine if the proposed alternative roof material meets 
the Preservation Guidelines, is appropriate for this structure and compatible with the 
District as a whole. 
 
Commission Action: Approve, deny, amend or postpone the Certificate of 
Appropriateness request for the replacement of asbestos roof tiles with an alternative 
roof material for the property located at 645 S Lahoma Avenue. 

















Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         635 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-30 
 

 
 
 

1 

Property Location:  635 Chautauqua Ave 
Chautauqua Historic District  

 
Owner: Joe Deleon    
 
Request:  HD (22-30) Commission review and feedback at 635 Chautauqua 
Avenue submitted by Barrett Williamson, for Joe Deleon for: 

a. Addition to the house; 
b. Removal of existing driveway; 
c. Installation of new approach and drive on south side of the house; 
d. Construction of new two-story garage in rear yard; 
e. Installation of a 6’ fence side yard fence.  

 
Historical Information: 
2004 Chautauqua Historic District National Registry Nomination Survey states: 
635 South Chautauqua Avenue. Circa. 1939. Minimal Traditional. This contributing, one- 
and two-story, brick single dwelling has an asphalt-covered, cross-gabled roof and a 
brick foundation. The wood windows are six-over-six hung and casement with metal 
storms. The wood door is paneled with a metal storm. The partial porch is uncovered. 
There is an integral, single car garage with swinging wood doors on the north side. 
Decorative details include double windows, cloth awnings, minimal eave overhang and 
weatherboard on the gable ends. 
 
Sanborn Insurance Maps 
The 1944 Sanborn Insurance Maps indicates the principal structure in its current location 
and configuration.  
 
Background Information; 
There have been no COA requests for this property. 
 
Project Description:   
The property owner recently purchased this property and wishes to add a new driveway 
on the south side of the house that leads to a new 2-story garage in the rear yard. AS 
part of the reconfiguration of driveway and parking, the property owner may also want to 
remove the existing driveway as well. The applicant would like to add an addition to the 
rear of the house and a 6’ side yard fence on the south property line. Since this is a 
complex request the property owner’s architect, Barrett Williamson suggested a feedback 
session with the Commission before proceeding to a full set of drawings for the 
proposals.  
 
Historic District Ordinance & Guidelines: 
Historic District Ordinance 
Section 429.3.7 Certificates of Appropriateness 
(c): Submitting COA Application Materials. When applying for a Certificate of 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         635 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-30 
 

 
 
 

2 

Appropriateness, the applicant shall furnish copies of all detailed site and building plans, 
elevations, perspectives, material samples, and specifications, with sufficient detail to 
clearly illustrate the applicant's intent. Applicants are encouraged to meet with the 
Historic Preservation Officer before submitting an application and may also request a 
meeting with the Historic District Commission before submitting an application in order to 
get feedback from the Commission on a forthcoming application. Applicants may also 
consult with the Historic Preservation Officer as needed during the review of the 
Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) application. Incomplete applications will not be 
forwarded to the Commission for review. (0-0910-12) 
 
Preservation Guidelines:  
 
Garages  
2.4 Guidelines  
A review by the Historic District Commission will use the following criteria for the 
issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA): 
.1 Preserve Historic Garage Structures.  Retain and preserve garages in their 
original locations and configurations.  Even if the function changes, the exterior 
appearance shall remain the same.  
.2 Preserve Original Materials.  Retain and preserve character-defining materials, 
features, and details of historic garages, including foundations, siding, masonry, 
windows, garage doors, and architectural trim.  When necessary, repair character-
defining materials, features, and details of historic garages in-kind according to pertinent 
guidelines. 
.3 Replace Only Deteriorated Portions.  If replacement of a deteriorated element 
or detail of a historic garage is necessary, replace only the deteriorated portion in-kind 
rather than replacing the entire feature.  Match the original in design, dimension, texture, 
and material. Consider compatible substitute materials only if the original materials are 
no longer available. 
.4 Request for Garage Demolitions.  A request to demolition a historic garage will 
utilize the following in determining the eligibility for demolition:  

a. An existing structure of architectural or historical significance shall be retained if 
repairs are reasonably possible.  

b. An existing structure is dilapidated, leaning, lacking a solid foundation, or of 
substandard construction, it may be eligible for demolition 

c. An existing structure is 240 square feet or less, it may be eligible for demolition. 
d. An existing structure was built after the period of significance; it may be eligible for 

demolition. 
e. The removal of existing historic structure will enable access to the rear yard where 

no access currently exists; it may be eligible for demolition. 
.5   New Garage Construction.  A new garage shall be compatible in form, scale, 
size, materials, features, and finish with the principal structure.  The following criteria will 
be considered for a new garage constructed where there is currently no historic structure: 

a. The new structure will utilize alley access if available. 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         635 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-30 
 

 
 
 

3 

b. The new footprint will be 575 square feet or 50% of the footprint of the principal 
structure, whichever is smaller.  

c. The cumulative of square footages for all garage structures on the lot, shall be no 
greater than the footprint of the principal structure.   

d. New garage are to be subservient to the principal structure and in no case will the 
garage structure be taller, wider or deeper than the principal structure.   

e. The proposed construction will preserve existing trees. 
f. Maximum of two garages are allowed per site. 

.6   New Garage Height.  New garage structures shall be the traditional height and 
proportion of garages in the district.  New garages in blocks that contain only one-story 
garages shall be one-story.  One and a half story and two-story garages may be built if 
located on a block where one and a half story and two-story garages are dominant or if 
adjacent properties contain similar height garages.  The wall height and height of roof 
ridge are to be no greater than the principal structure. 
.7   New Garage Location.  New garages structures that are not replacing a historic 
garage are to be located behind the principal structure in the rear yard with limited or no 
visibility from the front right-of-way. Garages replacing historic garages shall maintain the 
location and configuration of a historic garage, typically at the end of a front driveway.  
Such garages shall be located behind the back elevation of the principal structure.  
.8  New Garage Materials.  The following may be considered on a case-by-case 
basis for new garages: 

a. Acceptable materials include wood, brick and stone masonry, and stucco. 
Fiber cement products for new garage construction located off an alleyway or if 
setback behind the rear of the house will be considered on a case-by-case 
basis.  It should be noted that wood siding does not have “wood grain.”  Only 
smooth cement board is permitted.   The use of vinyl, Masonite, aluminum or 
other metal sidings is prohibited.  

b. Aluminum clad doors and windows are allowed for garages located of an 
alleyway or behind the rear elevation of the house, with no or limited visibility 
from the from the front right-of-way. 

c. Wood, wood composite or metal overhead garage doors with wood/wood 
composite trim are allowed. 

d. Garage doors shall be a single width.  Double width garage doors will be 
considered on a case-by-case basis.  

.9 Additions to Garage Structures.  Additions to existing garages may be 
appropriate if not visible from the front right-of-way.  Additions shall not be greater than 
the footprint of the existing garage.  Additions must match the materials and design of 
exiting garage structure. 
.10  Reconstruction of Historic Garage.  The reconstruction of out buildings shall be 
based on historic evidence, such as photographs, Sanborn maps or other 
documentation.  If no such evidence exists, the design should be derived from the 
architectural style of the principal building and historic patterns and characteristics of the 
historic district.  Wood, brick and stucco are appropriate materials for reconstruction of a 
historic garage.  Overhead garage doors with the appearance of double doors will be 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         635 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-30 
 

 
 
 

4 

considered on a case-by-case basis.  Historic garages shall be located at the end of a 
driveway along the side property line and face the front street right-of way.  
.11   Replacement Garage Doors.  Retain and preserve wood overhead garage doors 
on historic garages.  Retain double doors if possible.  Replacement overhead garage 
doors with the appearance of double doors will be considered on a case-by-case basis.  
For historic garages, and garages that face the front or are visible from the right-of-way 
the following replacement door is allowed: 
a.   Wood is preferred.  However, wood composite or metal with composite trim can be 
considered on a case-by-case basis.  Vinyl is prohibited.  
b.   The original size, height and width of doors must be maintained.  
c.   Designs must match the style of the original historic garage door.   
 
.12  Carports.  Carports shall be unattached to the primary structure and meet the 
following: 

a. Located in the rear yard behind the principal structure, with no visibility from the 
front right-of-way(s).  Corner lots are considered to have two front elevations. 

b. Constructed of wood or masonry.  Cement fiberboard to be considered on a case-
by-case basis. 

c. Maximum footprint size of 400 square feet with an eave height no greater than 10 
feet. 

d.  In no case shall the carport be taller, wider or deeper than the historic principal 
structure of the lot.  

 
Secondary Structures 
2.7 Guidelines.  
A review by the Historic District Commission will use the following criteria for the 
issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA): 
.1 Secondary structures.  Secondary structures are accessory structures with a 
footprint of 400 square feet or greater and/or taller than one-story, examples of a 
secondary structures are garage apartments, studios, workshops and cabanas. 
.2 Preserve Secondary Structures.  When possible, retain and preserve historic 
secondary structures in their original locations and configurations.  Even if the function 
changes, the exterior appearance shall remain the same. 
.3 Preserve Original Materials.  When possible, retain and preserve character-
defining materials, features, and details of historic secondary structures, including 
foundations, siding, masonry, windows, doors, and architectural trim.  When necessary, 
repair character-defining materials, features, and details of secondary structures in 
accordance with pertinent guidelines. 
.4 Replace Only Deteriorated Portions.  If replacement of a deteriorated element 
or detail of an historic secondary structure is necessary, replace only the deteriorated 
portion in-kind rather than replacing the entire feature.  Match the original in design, 
dimension, texture, and material.  Consider compatible substitute materials only if using 
the original material is not technically feasible. 
.5 Request for Secondary Structure Demolitions. The following will be utilized to 
assess a demolition request for a secondary structure:  



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         635 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-30 
 

 
 
 

5 

a. An existing structure of architectural or historical significance shall be retained if 
repairs are reasonably possible.  

b. An existing structure is dilapidated, leaning, lacking a solid foundation, or of 
substandard construction, it may be eligible for demolition. 

c. An existing structure is 240 square feet or less, it may be eligible for demolition. 
d. An existing structure was built after the period of significance; it may be eligible for 

demolition. 
e. The removal of existing historic structure will enable access to the rear yard where 

no access currently exists; it may be eligible for demolition. 
.6 Make New Construction Compatible. Secondary accessory structures are to be 
compatible with the principal structure and surrounding district and in no case overwhelm 
the principal structure.  Construction of secondary accessory structures will utilize the 
following criteria for new construction:  

a. Match in design, style, and material to the principal historic structure and the 
surrounding historic neighborhood. 

b. Compatible with the principal historic structure and/or the district in regards to 
materials, size, scale, height, form, massing, proportions, spacing and size of 
window and door openings, window to wall proportions and traditional setbacks 
seen in the neighborhood. 

.7  Size of New Secondary Structures.  New secondary accessory structures are to 
be subservient to the principal structure in no case will the secondary structure be taller, 
wider or deeper than the principal structure.   The size of a secondary structure is limited 
to 575 square feet or 50% of the principal structure footprint.  The cumulative of square 
footages for all accessory structures and garages on the lot, shall be no greater than the 
footprint of the principal structure.   
.8 Location and Setbacks of Secondary Structures.  New secondary structures 
are to maintain traditional locations and setbacks seen in the neighborhood.  Locations 
are to be in the rear yard, with limited or no visibility from front right-of-way, unless there 
historical indications of a different location. Corner lots are considered to have two front 
elevations. 
.9 Windows and Doors for Secondary Accessory Structures.  Select doors and 
windows for new secondary accessory buildings that are compatible in material, 
proportion, pattern, and detail with the doors and windows of historic buildings in the 
district.  See Windows and Door Guidelines. 
.10 Materials.  Select materials and finishes for proposed new buildings that found in 
historic buildings in the district in terms of composition, scale, pattern, detail, texture, and 
finish.  Acceptable materials include brick and stone masonry, stucco and wood.  Cement 
fiberboard will be considered on a case-by-case basis for those structures located behind 
the back elevation of the principal structure but with limited visibility from the front right-
of-way.  Metal and vinyl exterior materials are prohibited. 
.11 Avoid False Historical Appearance.  New secondary accessory structures are to 
be compatible with the style, age and character of the principal structure and district 
without creating a false historical appearance.  New structures are to be of their own time 
and differentiated from the historic structure while maintaining compatibility with the 
principal structure and the character of the neighborhood. 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         635 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-30 
 

 
 
 

6 

 
Sidewalks, Driveways, and Off-Street Parking 
2.9 Guidelines  
A review by the Historic District Commission will use the following criteria for the 
issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA): 
.1 Front Driveway Location.  Preserve and retain historic front driveways locations.  
New or expanded front driveways shall be perpendicular to the street, except in individual 
cases where there is historical documentation of an alternate configuration. Unless there 
is historic documentation otherwise, driveways shall be located along the property line on 
one side of the house.  
.2 Driveway Width.  Driveways shall be one car width, not to exceed 10 feet wide, 
unless there is historic documentation of an alternate configuration.  Driveway width may 
vary as it approaches a garage in order to correspond to the width of the door opening. 
.3 New Driveway Composition.  Driveways shall be constructed from material 
allowed by the City Code.  Existing gravel driveways may remain in place subject to other 
provisions in the City Code. 
.4 Ribbon Driveways.  Ribbon driveways are permitted to remain or may be newly 
installed in historic districts.  The minimum width of ribbon paving is 18 inches. 
.5 Driveway Approaches.  Maintain the rhythm of existing approaches when 
introducing new driveways.  Driveway approaches may be a maximum of 16 feet wide at 
the curb, narrowing to 10 feet at the sidewalk or property line. 
.6 Circular Drives.  Drives connecting to the street by two or more curb cut openings 
are not permitted in front yards or corner side yards unless demonstrated as historically 
present on the specific property in question. 
.7 Shared Driveways.  Historic driveways shared by two adjacent properties may be 
retained and preserved. 
.8 Sidewalk Location.  Sidewalks on private property shall be maintained in their 
traditional location, usually perpendicular to the street, unless there is historical 
documentation of another location. 
.9 Sidewalks and Curbs.  Public sidewalks and curbs on the street shall be 
constructed of finished concrete.  Sidewalks and curbs on private property may be 
constructed of finished concrete, brick, or stone. 
.10 New Paved Areas.  New paved areas should not directly abut the principal site 
structure, significantly alter the site topography, or overwhelm in area the residential, 
landscaped character of a rear or side yard.  Care must be taken that paved areas do not 
injure nearby trees by intruding onto their root areas.  They shall be designed to be 
compatible in location, patterns, spacing, configurations, dimensions, and materials with 
existing walkways and driveways.  Paved areas shall not overwhelm the principal 
structure. 
.11 Rear Yard Area.  New parking areas are permitted off alleyway with no visibility or 
limited visibility from the front right-of-way(s).  Corner lots are considered to have two 
front elevations.  Rear yard parking must meet Norman City Codes. 
.12 Side Yard Parking Area. The establishment of parking areas adjacent to the side 
of historic structures is not allowed. 



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         635 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-30 
 

 
 
 

7 

.13 Front Yard Parking Area.  Parking areas in the front yard of the property are 
prohibited except within an existing driveway.  
 
Fences and Masonry Walls 
2.11 Guidelines  
A review by the Historic District Commission will use the following criteria for the 
issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA): 
.1 Replacing Conforming Fences.  If an existing, conforming type of fence or wall 
is being replaced with one that is the same in material, height, placement, and style, a 
Certificate of Appropriateness is not required. 
.2 Materials.  Retain and preserve historic wall and fence materials that contribute to 
the overall historic character of a building.  Acceptable materials for new fences and walls 
are wood, brick, stone, cast iron, iron, twisted wire, painted aluminum that mimics the 
appearance of cast iron or iron fences.  Vinyl is prohibited.  A 4 foot chain link in the side 
or rear yards will be considered on a case-by-case basis. 
.3   Front Yard Fences.  Front yard fences taller than 4 feet are prohibited by the 
Norman Zoning Ordinance.  
.4 Side Yard Fences.  Side yard fences of up to 4 feet in height may be approved by 
Administrative Bypass.  Side yard fences taller than 4 feet require a COA. Side yard 
fences taller than 6 feet are prohibited.  
.5 Rear Yard Fences.  Rear yard fences of a contemporary design or of non-
traditional materials or of height greater than 8 feet will be considered on a case-by-case 
basis.  Such fences will be review for their impact to the historic structure and the District 
as a whole.  The Norman Zoning Ordinance prohibits rear yard fences taller than 8 feet.  
.6 Fences on Corner Properties Adjacent to Alleys.  Fences on corner properties 
with alley access shall be located very carefully to maximize sight lines and minimize 
conflicts between alley traffic, pedestrians, and on-street traffic. 
.7 Fence and Wall Materials.  Fences or walls shall be constructed of wood, brick, 
stone, iron or cast or forged metal, stucco, or a combination of these materials.  Stone or 
brick used in walls shall be compatible in size, scale, and style to that used elsewhere in 
the historic district, or typical of residential structures of this type, age, and location.  No 
vinyl, cinder block, concrete block, or corrugated metal, may be used for fences or walls 
in historic districts.  Chain link in the rear yard will be considered on a case-by-case 
basis.  
.8 Colors and Finishes.  Although paint color is not regulated by the Commission, it 
is strongly recommended that wood fences be stained or painted in colors and finishes 
appropriate to the style and period of the property and the district or left unfinished.  No 
decorative murals shall be applied to fence or wall surfaces visible from the street. 
.9 Finished Side Out.  Fences or walls facing the street shall be constructed with 
the finished side out. 
.10 Setback and Adjacent Property Tie-In.  A fence 4 feet or less in height shall be 
set back a minimum of 1 foot from the inner edge of a public sidewalk.  Where no 
sidewalk exists, fences shall be set back a minimum of 6 feet from the back of curb or 
edge of pavement.  If a fence exists on an adjacent property, the corner side yard fence 
shall tie into the existing fence.  



Norman Historic District Commission      November 7, 2022 
Staff Report         635 Chautauqua Ave 
          HD 22-30 
 

 
 
 

8 

 
 
 
Staff Comments:  
 
The property owner and applicant’s architect are seeking feedback regarding these 
proposed projects.  
 
The applicant will provide a site plan and drawings for the proposals by the time of the 
meeting.  
 
Commission Action: No vote is required, however the Commission is requested to 
provide review and preliminary feedback regarding the removal of existing driveway and 
installation of new approach and drive to access a proposed two-story garage with living 
quarters in the rear yard, 6’ fence along on side property line, and addition on the rear of 
the house for the property located at 635 Chautauqua Avenue. 
 







2022 CALENDAR YEAR 
SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MEETINGS 
 

Historic District Commission 
Name of Board/Commission/Committee 

 
 

 
Please enter the date of the meeting in the DATE column or type in the following:  
    "Meetings scheduled as Needed" in the DATE column. 

DATE  TIME  Physical Location 

01/03/22  5:30pm  201 W Gray St, Bldg A, Conf Room D 

02/07/22  5:30pm  201 W Gray St Bldg A, Conf Room D 

03/07/22  5:30pm  201 W Gray St Bldg A, Conf Room D 

04/04/22  5:30pm  201 W Gray St Bldg A, Conf Room D 

05/02/22  5:30pm  201 W Gray St Bldg A, Conf Room D 

06/06/22  5:30pm  201 W Gray St Bldg A, Conf Room D 

07/05/22  5:30pm  201 W Gray St Bldg A, Conf Room D 

08/01/22  5:30pm  201 W Gray St Bldg A, Conf Room D 

09/06/22  5:30pm  201 W Gray St Bldg A, Conf Room D 

10/03/22  5:30pm  201 W Gray St Bldg A, Conf Room D 

11/07/22  5:30pm  201 W Gray St, City Council Chambers 

12/05/22  5:30pm  201 W Gray St, City Council Chambers 

To be completed by person filing notice: 
 
 
 
Name: 

 
 
Whitney Kline 

  
Address: 201 W. Gray 
 Norman, OK  73071 
Phone No.:  

 
 
 
Filed in the office of the Municipal Clerk at                  a.m. /p.m. on                                                      
 
 
Signed:  
 City Clerk 

 
 
*Must be filed prior to December 15, 2021 
 

 
Monthly Planner  

 
City Website Calendar  

 
Meeting Room Calendar  

    

City Clerk’s Office Use Only 

 



2023 CALENDAR YEAR 
SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MEETINGS 
 

Historic District Commission 
Name of Board/Commission/Committee 

 
 

 
Please enter the date of the meeting in the DATE column or type in the following:  
    "Meetings scheduled as Needed" in the DATE column. 

DATE  TIME  Physical Location 

01/03/23  5:30pm  201 W Gray, Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

02/06/23  5:30pm  201 W Gray, Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

03/06/23  5:30pm  201 W Gray, Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

04/03/23  5:30pm  201 W Gray, Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

05/01/23  5:30pm  201 W Gray, Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

06/05/23  5:30pm  201 W Gray, Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

07/03/23  5:30pm  201 W Gray, Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

08/07/23  5:30pm  201 W Gray, Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

09/05/23  5:30pm  201 W Gray, Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

10/02/23  5:30pm  201 W Gray, Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

11/06/23  5:30pm  201 W Gray, Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

12/04/23  5:30pm  201 W Gray, Municipal Building, Council Chambers 
To be completed by person filing notice: 
 
 
 
Name: 

 
 
Whitney Kline 

  
Address:  
  
Phone No.:  

 
 
 
Filed in the office of the Municipal Clerk at                  a.m. /p.m. on                                                      
 
 
Signed:  
 City Clerk 

 
 
*Must be filed prior to December 15, 2022 
 

 
Monthly Planner  

 
City Website Calendar  

 
Meeting Room Calendar  

    

City Clerk’s Office Use Only 

 


	HD Agenda_November_7_2022_ais_rev
	HD_Minutes_October_3_2022_AIS_rev
	610_Miller_Ave_ Staff Report
	COA Application
	Pictures
	Drwgs_Green Residence 9-07-22
	412 _Chautuqua_Ave_ Staff Report
	412 Chautaugua COA Application
	0725_001
	0726_001

	412 Chautauqua Garage Picture
	412_Chaut_1944_Sanborn
	645 S Lahoma Ave_Staff Report
	645 S Lahoma COA Application
	0727_001
	0728_001

	Samples
	1944_ Sanborn Map
	635 Chautuaqua_Ave_feedback_ Staff Report
	635 Chautauqua COA Application - Feedback
	635 Chautauqua_1944 Sanborn
	HD Meeting Schedule 2022 edit.pdf
	2022 CALENDAR YEAR
	SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MEETINGS

	ADP1F9A.tmp
	2023 CALENDAR YEAR
	SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MEETINGS




